
PLANNING COMMISSION PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY  
PLANNING COMMISSION  

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 2023  
6:30 PM 

 
 

Suisun City Council Chambers - 701 Civic Center Boulevard - Suisun City, California  
 
 
NOTICE 
 
The following Planning Commission meeting may include teleconference participation by: Commissioners Albert Enault, 
Vinay Tewari, Herbert Dardon, Terrance West, and Kristina Elder in accordance with subdivision (b), (e), or (f) of Section 
54953 of the Government Code, as applicable. 
 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 
FULLY VACCINATED. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU. 

 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED 

NUMBER OF SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT 
clerk@suisun.com OR 707 421-7302. 

 
ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 
MEETING ID: 893 0598 5651 

CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 
 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETINGBY EMAILING 
CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM), VIA WEBSITE OR ZOOM CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720. 

 
(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

 
(Next Resolution No. PC 23-01) 

 
ROLL CALL  
Planning Commissioners 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Invocation 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Commissioners should be identified at this 
time.)  

 

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


REPORTS: (Informational items only.) 
 

1 City Manager/Staff 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 
California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 
Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 
Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 
period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on 
a future agenda.) 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 
 

2 Planning Commission Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair. 
 

3 Planning Commission Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Suisun City 
Planning Commission held on November 30, 2022 - (Vasquez: bvasquez@suisun.com). 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

4 Planning Commission Adoption of Resolution No. PC23-___: A Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Suisun City Approving Site Plan/Architectural Review, Variance, 
Uniform Sign Program, and Modified Initial Study for a Tractor Supply Retail Store on a 
Vacant 3.17-acre Parcel Located East of Sunset Avenue, North of Highway 12, and West of 
Snow Drive (APN 0173-390-160) – (Wooden: awooden@suisun.com). 

 
5 Planning Commission Adoption of Resolution No. PC23-___: A Resolution of the Planning 

Commission of the City of Suisun City Recommending that the City Council Adopt a General 
Plan Amendment to Update the General Plan Housing Element for the Period of 2023-2031 
and the General Plan Public Health and Safety Element – (Kearns: jkearns@suisun.com). 

 
GENERAL BUSINESS NONE 
 
REPORTS: (Informational items only.) 
 

6 a. Commission Member  
b. Commission Chairperson 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Public Access To Agenda Documents  
A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session 
of this meeting, and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a 
Council /Agency/Authority Meeting at Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City. Agenda related 
writings or documents provided to a majority of the Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a 
Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting will be made 
available for public inspection during normal business hours. An agenda packet is also located at the entrance to  



the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review. The city may charge photocopying charges for 
requested copies of such documents. To the extent feasible, the agenda packet is available for online public 
viewing on the City’s website: www.suisun.com/government/city-council/city-council 
 
The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 p.m. No new items will be 
taken up after 10:00 p.m., unless so moved by a majority of the City Council, and any items remaining will be 
agendized for the next meeting. The agendas have been prepared with the hope that all items scheduled will be 
discussed within the time allowed. 
 
Accommodations  
If you require an accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (707) 421-7302 
or clerk@suisun.com. The City’s reasonable accommodation policy is available for review on the City’s website 
at www.suisun.com/government/city-council/, you may request an electronic copy or have a copy mailed to you. 
Please note that for accommodations that are not readily available, you must make your request as soon as you 
can prior to the time of the meeting. 
 
Decorum  
All participants are expected to conduct themselves with mutual respect. Conduct that disrupts meetings will be 
addressed in accordance with Section 54957.95 of the Government Code. 
 
Ordinances  
Ordinances are city laws contained in the Suisun City Municipal Code. Enacting a new city law or changing an 
existing one is a two -step process. Government Code 36934 provides, except when, after reading the title, further 
reading is waived by regular motion adopted by majority vote all ordinances shall be read in full either at the time 
of introduction or passage; provided, however, that a reading of the title or ordinance shall not be required if the 
title is included on the published agenda and a copy of the full ordinance is made available to the public online 
and in print at the meeting prior to the introduction or passage. 
 
Certification Of Posting  
Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center 
Boulevard, Suisun City, CA. Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including: 
 

Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA; 
Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, 
CA; Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA; 
Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA.  

 
I, Bianca Vasquez, Administrative Assistant for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that 
the above agenda was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



PLANNING COMMISSION PLANNING COMMISSION 
Anthony Adams, Chair MEETING 
Albert Enault, Member 
Vinay Tewari, Member 
Jessie Pooni, Member 
Angel Borja, Member  

M I N U T E S 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2022 
6:30 PM 

Suisun City Council Chambers - 701 Civic Center Boulevard - Suisun City, California 

NOTICE 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 (2021), the 
following Planning Commission meeting includes teleconference participation by: Commissioners Angel Borja, Albert 
Enault, Jessie Pooni, Vinay Tewari and Chair Anthony Adams. Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic 
Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 
FULLY VACCINATED. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU. 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED 
NUMBER OF SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT 

clerk@suisun.com OR 707 421-7302. 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID: 814 9543 4826
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETINGBY EMAILING 
CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM) OR VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

(Next Resolution No. PC 22-06) 

ROLL CALL 
Chairperson Adams called the meeting to order at 6:32 pm with the following Planning Commissioners 
present:  
Present: Adams, Pooni, Tewari, Borja, Enault 
Absent: None  
Pledge of Allegiance led by Commissioner Enault. 
Invocation led by Principal Planner Kearns.  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION - NONE  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Commissioners should be identified at this 
time). 

Item 3

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


REPORTS: (Informational items only.)  
1 City Manager/Staff 

Development Services Director Bermudez reported that zoning amendments were brought forth in early 
November and continued to recalibrate the approach taken. It is intended to restart that process and move 
forward in January.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS - NONE  
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 
California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 
Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 
Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 
period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on 
a future agenda.) 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion.  

2 Planning Commission Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Suisun City 
Planning Commission held on October 25, 2022 - (Vasquez: bvasquez@suisun.com). 

Motion by Commissioner Pooni to approve Consent Calendar and seconded by Chairperson Adams. 
Motion passed by the following vote: 
AYES: Pooni, Adams, Borja 
ABSTAIN: Tewari, Enault  

PUBLIC HEARING 

• Commission Adoption of Resolution No. PC22-06: A Resolution of the Planning Commission of
the City of Suisun City Approving Addition of 13,500 Square Feet of Portable Storage on
Property Located at 621 Railroad Avenue, Assessor’s Parcel Number 0037-090-060, (Exempt 
from California Environmental Quality Act per Section 15303, New Construction or Conversion 
of Small Structures) – (Kearns: jkearns@suisun.com). 

Principal Planner Kearns presented PowerPoint for the proposed project.  

Chairperson Adams opened for any clarifying questions from the Commission. 

Commissioner Enault asked a clarifying question on the setback being 20 feet along the rear property 
line. 

Principal Planner Kearns answered, the Commercial Services and Fabricating (CSF) district has a 
specific setback for properties in that zone that back up or are adjacent to residential.  

Commissioner Enault asked clarifying questions on the space and relocation of the site plan, the setback 
compared to the other surrounding buildings for the units along Railroad Ave.  

Applicants Tony and Vince answered clarifying questions. 

Chairperson Adams opened for Public Comments. 
Steve Olry commented on the gas station in the middle of Jubilee Development, and asked what the 
financial impact on Suisun City is for the portable storages, if there was an obligation to curbing 
sidewalks, and if this is an increase in revenue for the City.  

Item 3

mailto:bvasquez@suisun.com
mailto:jkearns@suisun.com


George Guynn commented on what kind of storage units are being developed, and asked if there would 
be heavy trucks or traffic going in and out causing damage to the roads, if there would be an effect on 
traffic and disruption to the neighborhood. 
 
James Berg asked what the financial benefit of the portable storages would be, the effect on property 
values or taxes, does the City have a quota for the number of storage facilities in town, if the storage units 
would eventually need to be upgraded or made permanent, and sprinkler systems in the storage units.  
 
Applicant Tony shared an overview of the intention of the project.  
 
Chairperson Adams closed Public Hearing and opened up for discussion with commissioners.  
 
Commissioner Tewari commented on the concern of the narrowness of the road.  
 
Commissioner Pooni stated one of her biggest concerns is traffic.  
 
Commissioner Enault commented on planting landscaping within easements, allowing trees within the 
public utilities by modifying the condition, adding landscape improvements for aesthetics to the frontage 
along Worley Road, and possibly relocating one or two of the units that are along Railroad Avenue.  
 
Chairperson Adams commented that it is unclear what the visual of the portable storage units will be 
from the street, the proximity of the surrounding buildings and portable storage units is too close and the 
visual needs to be appealing to counteract the close proximity of steel next to each other. On the same 
tact with landscape comments, the questions brought up tonight will be gone through individually.  
 
Chairperson Adams asked if there was any kind of fiscal impact analysis done on this project and if there 
was an impact fee.  
 
Principal Planner Kearns answered that the primary revenue source is the annexation into the Community 
Facility Districts (CFD). This would offset the revenue to pay for Police, Fire, etc., as well as paying for 
other minimal taxes with business licenses 
 
Chairperson Adams asked what type of things will be stored in the storage units and will there be heavy 
trucks going in or just normal storage that any family could go to. 
 
Principal Planner Kearns answered that there will only be large trucks when the storage units come in, 
the storage units are relatively small in size, traffic is found to be minimal, and the hours people can go 
in and out of the project are controlled.  
 
Chairperson Adams asked a clarifying question to the applicants regarding hours of operation.  
 
The applicant answered the clarifying question.  
 
Chairperson Adams asked if there was a traffic study done on this project and if there was a reason it did 
not necessitate a traffic study.   
 
Principal Planner Kearns answered that there was not a traffic impact study done 
 
Chairperson Adams asked the applicants if there was anything they could say regarding community 
impact with a storage unit and if there would be noise with trucks coming in and out.  
The applicant answered the clarifying question.  
 

Item 3



Chairperson Adams clarified if the tax revenue being in the CFD is now tied to inflation and asked what 
the estimate was.  

Principal Planner answered that was correct and the estimate was $900 per thousand square ft. 

Chairperson Adams asked if the Fire Department was aware that there are no sprinkler systems and if 
they were consulted on the design of the narrow roads.  

Principal Planner Kearns answered that the Fire Department consulted with the design multiple times 

Chairperson Adams opened up a discussion with commissioners for any recommendations or comments. 
Vice Chair Enault was addressed to explain what he meant by modifying the condition to allow trees in 
the utilities easements.  

Commissioner Enault answered that on the landscape plan on sheets L1 along the project frontage on 
Railroad Avenue there are a number of trees that are further outside of that easement and based off of 
that condition then all of the trees would need to be removed.  

Chairperson Adams asked if there were any gas lines in the easement currently and if trees would be 
taken down due to the road being paved there.  

The applicant answered the commissioners’ questions. 

Chairperson Adams addressed the commissioners to talk about the change to the landscaping. 
Commissioner Tewari commented that it doesn’t make sense to remove the trees and then put a road 
there and asked for clarification on the timeline on the expansion of Railroad Avenue.  

Principal Planner Kearns answered that it is unclear of the timeline, the expansion of Railroad Avenue is 
going to be a policy decision.  

Development Services Director Bermudez commented that ultimately what’s going to happen with 
Railroad Avenue is a capital improvement project that would increase the size of Railroad Avenue  

Chairperson Adams asked to have a consensus on modifying PW-20 to say no structures such as trees 
and building foundations shall be installed within easements unless approved by the Public Works 
Director.  

Commissioner Enault recommended as part of the modification that the Development Services Director 
be included in that evaluation of landscaping and approval along with the PW Director.  

Chairperson Adams asked for a consensus from commissioners.  

Commissioner Tewari and Commissioner Pooni agreed to a consensus. 

Chairperson Adams commented that Commissioner Enault recommended adding landscaping to 
improvements. This can be added in addition to the development conditions.  

Commissioner Tewari commented that yes, it doesn’t seem too costly for the developer and helps 
beautify the City as long as it's not a major landscaping project.  

Commissioner Pooni and Commissioner Borja agreed with Commissioner Tewari. 

Item 3



Chairperson Adams proposed a vegetative screen with a 70% visual opacity. 

Development Services Director Bermudez agreed they could work with that. 

Chairperson Adams stated they will add a vegetative screen along Worley Road as a development 
condition.  

Commissioner Borja stated that Commissioner Enault brought up the building closest to Railroad 
Avenue.  

Chairperson Adams clarified that Commissioner Enault brought up the other storage unit in proximity to 
Railroad Avenue.  
Commissioner Tewari asked if they could be straightened.  

The applicant answered the questions from the commissioners. 
Chairperson Adams stated the following changes:  

• Modify condition PW-20 to say to add unless approved by PW Director and Development
Services Director.

• Include a Development Provision to add landscaping along Worley Road sufficient to
provide a visual screen subject to the Development Services Director approval.

• Change design slightly for the last two units on the very Northeast corner and straighten
them out to be aligned with the rest to provide a larger setback.

• Strike original P-14 and adding new P-14 stating the project should include modification
to ensure all applicable setbacks are met providing a required 20 ft. setback along the
southern property line. This may require the relocation of some portable storage
containers.

Commissioner Enault motioned to approve and seconded by Commissioner Tewari. Motion passed by 
the following vote:  

AYES: Enault, Tewari, Borja, Pooni, Adams. 
NOES: None 

GENERAL BUSINESS NONE 

REPORTS: (Informational items only.) 

4 a. Commission Member 
                      b. Commission Chairperson
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:56 pm. 

Bianca Vasquez 
Administrative Assistant II 

Item 3













































































Item 4 
Attachment 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 










































































































































































	Agenda 2023 02 28
	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 1.pdf
	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 1
	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 1 Exhibit 2
	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 1 Exhibit 3

	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 3.pdf
	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 3 Grading
	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 3 Enlarged Site Plan
	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 3 Fire Access
	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 3 Exterior Elevations
	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 3 Floor Plan
	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 3 Landscape

	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Attachment 4.pdf
	Legacy Center USP (Tractor Supply Co)_Suisun City_CA_R03 2-23-23
	Legacy Center USP (Tractor Supply Co)_Suisun City_CA_R02 Monument Sign Page 9

	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Staff Report.pdf
	Assembly Bill 52

	February 28 2023 - General Plan Update Staff Report.pdf
	Section 15061(b)(3): Common Sense Exemption
	Analysis in Support of Findings

	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Staff Report.pdf
	Assembly Bill 52

	February 28 2023 - General Plan Update Staff Report.pdf
	Section 15061(b)(3): Common Sense Exemption
	Analysis in Support of Findings

	February 28 2023 - Tractor Supply Staff Report.pdf
	Assembly Bill 52

	February 28 2023 - General Plan Update Staff Report.pdf
	Section 15061(b)(3): Common Sense Exemption
	Analysis in Support of Findings




